
Mr. U MARI ( Iraq) explaiHed that to a void 
procedural difficulties his deleration had submit
ted three separate dra ft reso utions concerning 
eaclt of the ·territories under discussion instead 
of its original draft resolution (A/ C.l/453 ) 
which bad been withdrawn. 

The meeting rose at 6.5 p.m. 

TWO HUNDRED AND SIXTY-FIFm 
MEETING 

H eld at Lake Success, New York 
on Tuesday, 10 May 1949, at 10.30 a.m. 

ChairmatL" Mr. F. VAN LANGEliHOVE (Belgium). 

ISO. Discussion on the CJ:Uestion of the 
treatment of lndians in the Union 
of South Mrica (C•>ntinued} 

Mr. Louw (Union of South Africa) said that 
on the basis of Article 2, pa:-agraph 7, of the 
Charter, his Government took exception to the 
competence of the General Ass•!mbly to entertain 
the complaint of the Government of India. 

Taking advantage of the dec:sion taken on the 
previous day (263rd meeting), ·:he Indian delega
tion had launched a violent and, in many respects 
unjustified, attack against the delegation of the 
Union of South A frica th us tending to cause 
prejudice to the delegation of th~ Union of South 
Africa when the Committee e<~me to a decision 
on the question of competence. 

The representative of India had endeavoured 
to incite animosity against the U nion of South 
Africa. By using the same methods, however, it 
would be an easy matter to dis :lose the tru th as 
regards India's professed attachment to funda
mental liber ties and human dignity. A booklet 
published by the delegation of Hyderabad could 
be used in that connexion, but, in the first place, 
Mr. Louw did not intend togo into the substance 
of the question, and, secondly, loe would be loath 
to isolate quotations from their context as the 
Indian representative had done. If the latter was 
truly a plaintiff, in accordance with a well-estab
lished legal principle it seeme< ~ that he should 
have come before the Committee with his hands 
d ean. 

Many inaccurate assertions had been made, in 
particular to the effect that the l ndian~ could not 
occupy property in the best area s of the country, 
that they were being deprived of ali opportunities 
for advancement, condemned tc perpetuai isola
tion and denied skilled employment. Most sur
prising of ail bad been the refen~nce to the riots 
in Durban, for the report of tl e J udicial Com
mission, whicb bad been presi i ed over by an 
eminent judge, showed that the riots had bad no 
connexion with the Govemment of the Union of 
South Africa's policy, but had been the culmina
tion of a long-standing feud. Hai it not been for 
the prompt action of the police and .the armed 
forces, the Natives would have 1nassacred ail the 
Indians in the Durban area. 

Having given the above details for purposes of 
information, it was absolutely n~œssary to sepa
rate the question of competence from that of sub
stance. The Union ef South Africa was opposed 

M. UMARI (Irak) explique que sa délégation a 
retiré son projet de résolution primitif (A/C.l/ 
453) et a présenté, à la place, un projet de résolu
tion distinct pour chacun des trois territoires en 
question, afin d'éviter des difficultés de procédure. 

La séance est levée à 18 h. 5. 

DEUX CENT SOIXANTE-CINQUIEME 
SEANCE 

Tem~e à Lake Success, New-Yark, 
le mardi 10 mai 1949, à 10 h. 30. 

Président: M. F . VAN L ANGENHOVE (Belgique) . 

150. Discussion snr la question du 
traitement des Hindous établis 
dans l'Union Sud-Africaine 
(suite) 

M. Louw (Union Sud-Africaine) déclare que 
son Gouvernement, se fondant sur le paragraphe 
7 de l'Article 2 de la Charte, soulève l'exception 
d'incompétence relativement à la recevabilité par 
l'Assemblée générale de la plainte du Gouverne
ment de l'Inde. 

Profitant de la décision prise la veille (263ème 
séance), la délégation de l'Inde a lancé contre 
l'Union Sud-Africaine des attaques violentes et 
bien souvent injustifiées, qui risquent de causer 
préjudice à la délégation de l'Union Sud-Afri
caine lorsque la Commission se prononcera sur la 
question de compétence. 

Le représentant de l'Inde s'est efforcé d'exciter 
l'animosité contre l'Union Sud-Africaine. Mais si 
l'on voulait recourir aux même méthodes que lui, 
il serait facile de montrer ce qu'il en est du pré
tendu attachement de l'Inde aux libertés fonda
mentales et à la dignité humaine. Une brochure 
de la délégation de Haïderabad pourrait être utili
sée à cet effet, mais, d'une part, M. Louw ne se 
propose pas d'aborder le fond de la question, et 
d'autre part, il lui répugnerait de paraître isoler 
des citations de leur contexte, comme l'a fait le 
représentant de l'Inde. Il reste que, si celui-ci est 
véritablement un plaignant, un principe juridique 
bien établi semblerait exiger qu'il ait les mains 
nettes. 

Bien des allégations inexactes ont été faites, 
selon lesquelles, notamment, les Hindous ne pour
raient pas occuper de biens fonciers dans les meil
leurs districts, seraient pr ivés de toutes chances 
de réussite, perpétuellement isolés, exclus de la 
catégorie d'ouvrier spécialisé. Toutefois, le plus 
su rprenant a été l'allusion aux émeutes de Durban, 
car le rapport de la commission judiciaire présidée 
par un juge éminent indique que ces émeutes n'ont 
ew aucun lien avec la politique du Gouvernement 
de· l'Union Sud-Africaine, mais ont constitué 
l'aboutissement d'une longue inimitié. Sans la ra
pide action de la police et des forces armées, les 
indigènes auraient massacré tous les Hindous de 
la région de Durban. 

Ceci dit à titre d'information, il est absolument 
nécessaire de séparer les questions de compétence 
et de fond. Or, l'Union Sud-Africaine s'oppose à 
ce que la P remière Commission examine la plainte 

Z72. 



to having the First Committee examine the Indian 
complaint on the ground that Article 2, para
graph 7, precluded any intervention by the United 
Nations in matters which were essentially within 
the domestic j urisdiction of any State. The sepa
rate vote which would be taken on that question 
would be of concem to ali States, and would, 
perhaps, determine the fate of the United Nations. 
Indeed, it was the fi rst time that the question of 
the competence of the United Nations in relation 
to Article 2, paragraph 7 had been definitely put 
before the General Asscmbly as a completely 
separate issue. No doubt, in 1946, Field-Marshal 
Smuts had raised the question of competence, but 
it bad not been dealt with separately, and no 
separate vote had been taken. The First Com
mittee and the General Assembly had assumed 
that they were competent to deal with the problem, 
and on that assumption had examined its 
substance. 

T he Indian delegation, of course, had stated on 
the previous day (263rd meeting) as it had stated 
in Paris1

, that in 1946 and in 1947 the General 
Assembly had decided that it was competent in 
the matter, and that it could not go back on that 
decision. In reality, however, no decision on the 
question of competence had been taken eithcr in 
1946 or 1947. A mere postulate could not be con
sidered as a decision, nor did it constitute a prece
dent, the more so as in 194{) and in 1947 the Gen
eral Assembly had assumed powcrs which it did 
not in fact possess, and had violated Article 2, 
paragraph 7 of the Charter. 

On other occasions, for instance in the case of 
Cardinal Mindszenty, the question of the com
petence of the United Nations had been confused 
with the question of its inclusion on the agenda, 
and also with the question of the peace treaties. 

The national sovereignty of ail States was at 
stake and, while the great Powers were protected 
by the veto in the Security Council, Article 2, 
paragraph 7 constituted the only safeguard of the 
smaller countries. Mr. Evatt had played an emi
nent role at the San Francisco Conference whcre 
he, and together with him the smaller countries, 
had opposed a limitation of Article 2, paragraph 7 
according to which a dear violation of essential 
liberties and human rights would have constituted 
grounds r· r intervention. That proposai bad been 
rejected. 

The delegation of the Union of South Africa 
declared that the General Assembly was not com
petent in .the matter. Document A/577 went 
further than the corresponding document which 
had been submitted in 194<>~. At that time, India 
had intervened in behalf of South A frican citi
zens of Indian origin. In the new complaint it 
claimed the r ight to intervene in behalf of Asians 
an_d_ non-whites, thus showing to what lengths 
such kind of intervention could be carried. On 
that basis India, or any other Member could inter
vene in the domestic affairs of another State o11l 
behalf of any racial group. As a matter of fact, 
there would be infinitely more reason for inter- \ 
vening for instance, in behalf of certain racial olj 
religious groups in India. On 31 October 1948, 

1 See 0 fficial Records of tire thir'd session of the Gen· 
eral Assembly, Part !, General Committee, page 13. 

' See 0 fficial Records of the second part of the first 
session of the General Assembly, Joint Committee of the 
First and Sixth Committees, annex l. 

de l'Inde, puisque l'Article 2 (paragraphe 7) de 
la Charte exclut toute intervent ion des Nations 
Unies dans des questions qui relèvent de la com
pétence nationale d'un Etat. Le vote séparé qui 
interviendra sur ce point intéressera tous les E tats, 
et décidera peut-être du sort de l'Organisation. 
En effet, c'est la première fois que la question de 
la compétence des Nations Unies en fonction du 
paragraphe 7 de l'Article 2 est nettement posée à 
l'Assemblée générale comme un problème entière
ment distinct. Sans doute, en 1946, le maréchal 
Smuts avait-il soulevé la question de compétence, 
mais elle n'avait pas été traitée à part et aucun 
vote séparé n'avait eu lieu. La Première Commis
sion et l'Assemblée générale ont estimé qu'elles 
étaient compétentes et c'est sur cette base qu'elles 
ont abordé le fond du problème. 

Sans doute, la délégation de l' Inde a-t-elle dé
claré la veille (263ème séance), comme elle l'avait 
déjà fait à Paris~, que l'Assemblée générale avait 
décidé en 1946 et en 1947 qu'elle était compétente 
et qu'elle ne pouvait revenir sur cette décision. 
Mais,, en réalité, aucune décision n'a été prise en 
matière de compétence, ni en 1946, ni en 1947. 
Un simple postulat ne saurait être considéré com
me une décision, ni constituer un précédent, 
d'autant qu'en 1946 et en 1947, l'Assemblée géné
rale s'est arrogé des pouvoirs qui n'étaient pas les 
siens et a commis une violation du paragraphe 7 
de l'Article 2 de la Charte. 

A m'occasion d'autres questions, notamment de 
l'affaire du cardinal Mindszenty, la question de la 
compétence des Nations Unies s'est trouvée mêlée 
à celle de l'inscription de l'ordre du jour et aussi 
à celle des traités de paix. 

C'est la souveraineté nationale de tous les Etats 
qui est en jeu et, tandis que les grandes Puis
sances sont protégées par le droit de veto au Con
seil de sécurité, le paragraphe 7 de l'Article 2 est 
la seule sauvegarde des petits pays. M. Evatt l'a 
dit lors de la Conférence de San-Francisco, où il 
a joué un rôle important; avec lui, les petits pays 
se sont opposés à une limitation du paragraphe 7 
de l'Article 2, selon laquelle une violation patente 
des libertés essentielles et des droits de l'homme 
eût constitué un motif d'intervention. Cette dispo
sition a été rejetée. 

La délégation de l'Union Sud-Africaine déclare 
que l'Assemblée générale n'est pas compétente en 
la matière. Le document A/577 va plus loin que 
le document correspondant soumis en 19462 • 

Alors, l'Inde était intervenue en faveur de citoyens 
de l'Union Sud-Africaine d'origine hindoue. Dans 
sa nouvelle plainte, elle revendique le droit d'in
tervenir en faveur de tous les Asiatiques et non
blancs, montrant ainsi jusqu'où peut aller ce genre 
d'intervention. Sur cette base, l'Inde, ou tout 
autre Etat Membre, pourrait intervenir dans les 
affaires intérieures d'un autre pays en faveur de 
quelque groupe racial que ce soit. De fait, il y 
aurait des raisons infiniment plus solides pour in
tervenir, par exemple, en faveur de certains 
groupes raciaux ou religieux de l'Inde. Mais, le 

' Voir les Documen ts officiels de la troisième session 
de l'Assemblée générale, première partie, Bureau, page 13. 

' Voir les Documnus officiels de la deu.:riime part·ie 
de Jo première session de rAssemblée générale, Com
mission mixte des Première et Sixième Commissions, 
annexe 1. 



however, lsardar Pate), Deputf' Prime Minister 
of India, had stated that his Government would 
\Oppose United Nations intervention in the domes
ltic affairs of India, however fatal the conse
jquences might be for India, Pal:istan or the entire 
' world. 

The Indian delegation bad l<•dged a new corn
plaint. The representative of In<lia had stated dur
ing the first part of the third se~sion1 that in 1946, 
the Assembly had decided that it was competent 
to entertain the complaint. That assertion, which 
had been erroneous the previou; year, was at the 
present time devoid of ali signi ficance because of 
the submission of a complaint vrhich did not con
cern on! y persans of Indian 01 igin, but also re
lated to other non-white citizen~ of South Africa. 
There had been an entirely new jevelopment inas
much as the Union of South Africa had been 
accused of viola ting the purpo! es and princip les 
of the Charter through the "deniai of human 
rights and fundamental freedoms, on purely racial 
grounds, to an important sectic n of the popula
tion of the Union of South A fr ica". 

The Union of South Africa. on the basis of 
Article 2, paragraph 7 of the ·Charter objected 
that a question, which was ess1 ntially within its 
domestic jurisdiction, should be entertained, dis
cussed or decided upon by the ( eneral Assembly. 
The persans concerned were citi::ens of the Union 
of South Africa, and subject t•> the jurisdiction 
of the Parliament and Gove mment of that 
country. 

In the past, the delegation of India, as weil as 
that country's leaders and Press had misled many 
delegations by speaking of "Inc ian nationals", a 
term used during a debate in t 1e Indian Legis
lature. Document A/ 577, how( ver, referred to 
"South African nationals of Indian origin". 
Pandit Nehru, in a statement relating to the 
Union's voluntary repatriation scheme which 
India had after ail accepted in 1S47, had admitted 
that the persans concerned, whilt! Indians racially 
and culturally, were not Indian nationals. 

Thus the United Nations was being requested 
· to intervene in the relations betHeen a State and 
. its citizens. In order to justify that interference, 
· a violation of fundamental hu nan rights was 

alleged in an attempt to add a 11ew exception to 
that provided for in Article 2, paragraph 7. 

What had been the intentions of the founders 
ofi the United Nations when th!y had laid that 
corner-stone of the Organization, Article 2, para
graph 7 of the Charter. Article :~ proclaimed the 
principle of the sovereign equahy of al! Mem
bers, a principle which governed not only Article 
2 itself, but also the Charter as a whole. But in 
its desire to render the principl1! of sovereignty 
truly inviolable, Article 2 went even further by 
ex:cluding the possibility of intErvention by the 
United Nations in the domestic aiairs of a State. 
Paragraph 7 of that Article, to which the repre
sentative of Peru had referred during the discus
sion on Franco Spain (260th mel:ting), did away 

'See Official R ecords of the third' nssion of tl1e Gen
eral Assernbly, Part /, General Committee, page 13. 

31 octobre 1948, M. Sardar Pate!, Vice-Premier 
Ministre de l'Inde, déclarait que son Gouverne
ment s'opposerait à une intervention des Nations 
Unies dans les affaires intérieures de l'Inde, 
quelles qu'en puissent être les conséquences fa
tales pour l'Inde, le Pakistan ou le monde entier. 

La délégation de l'Inde présente maintenant 
une plainte nouvelle. Sans doute, le représentant 
de l'Inde avait souligné, au cours de la première 
partie de la troisième session1, que l'Assemblée 
s'était déclarée compétente à connaître de cette 
plainte. Mais cette assertion, déjà erronée l'année 
précédente, perd toute signification aujourd'hui 
du fait de la présentation d'une plainte qui ne 
concerne plus seulement les personnes d'origine 
hindoue mais s'étend également aux autres 
citoyens non blancs de l'Union Sud-Africaine. 
On est donc en présence d'un développement 
totalement nouveau, puisque l'Union Sud-Afri
caine est accusée de violer les buts et principes 
de la Charte en déniant " ... les droits de J'homme 
et les libertés fondamentales à une partie 
importante de la population de l'Uni on Sud
Africaine ... " . 

Se basant sur le paragraphe 7 de l'Article 2 de 
la Charte, l'Union Sud-Africaine s'oppose à ce 
que l'Assemblée générale aborde, discute ou 
tranche une question qui relève essentiellement 
de sa compétence nationale. Les personnes inté
ressées sont des citoyens de l'Union Sud
Africaine, soumis à la juridiction du parlement 
et du Gouvernement de ce pays. 

Sans doute, dans le passé, la délégation de 
l'Imde ainsi que les dirigeants et la presse de ce 
pays ont-ils induit en erreur de nombreuses 
délégations en parlant de "nationaux de l'Inde", 
termes employés au cours d'un débat au parlement 
de l' Inde. Mais il en est autrement du document 
A/577 qui mentionne " les ressortissants sud
africains d'origine hindoue''. D'ailleurs, le P andit 
Nehru, dans une déclaration tendant à écarter un 
rapatriement volontaire pourtant accepté par 
l'Inde en 1927, reconnaît que les intéressés, tout 
en étant de race et de culture hindoues, ne sont 
pas nationaux de l'Inde. 

Ainsi, on demande à l'Organisation des Nations 
Unies d'intervenir dans les relations entre un 
Etat et ses propres citoyens. Pour justifier cette 
immixtion, on allègue une violation des droits 
fondamentaux de l'homme, voulant ainsi ajouter 
une nouvelle exception à celle qui est prévue au 
paragraphe 7 de l'Article 2. 

Quelle était donc l'intention des fondateurs 
des Nations Unies lorsqu'ils ont posé cette pierre 
angulaire de l'Organisation, l'Article 2 (para
graphe 7) de la Charte? L'Article 2 proclame 
le principe de l'égalité souveraine de tous les 
Membres, principe qui gouverne non seulement 
l'Article 2 lui-même, mais toute la Charte. Mais, 
dans sa volonté de rendre ce principe naiment 
inexpugnable, en excluant la possibilité d'une 
intervention des Nations Unies dans les affaires 
intérieures d'un Etat, l'Article 2 va plus loin. A 
son paragraphe 7, auquel s'est référé le repré
sentant du Pérou dans la question de l'Espagne 
franquiste, il écarte tout malentendu auquel 

' Voir les Documents officiels de f Assemblée générole, 
première partie, Bureau, page 13. 



with any misunderstanding to which certain 
clauses of the Charter might give rise by specify
ing that: 

"N othing contained in the present Charter shall 
authorize the United Nations to intervene in mat
ters which are essentiatly within .the domestic 
jurisdiction of any State ... " 

F urthermore, so as to exclude any possible 
doubt the sole exception to that principle was 
expressly indicated, namely, that which related to 
enforcement measures under Chapter VII. It was 
thus clear that if there had been a desire to in
elude another exception such as for instance con
ceming human rights, it would have been 
expressly excluded. In fact, Article 2, paragraph 7 
excluded the operation of Articles 10 and 14, and, 
in short, everything except enforcement measures 
under Chapter VII. 

The delegation of the Union of South Africa 
therefore took its stand on Article 2, paragraph 7, 
without which the United Nations could never 
have come into being; many small Powers, in 
particular, would have hesitated to become Mem
bers without it. But today. sorne were moving 
counter to the intentions of the founders of the 
Organization. The meaning of Art1cle 2, para
graph 7, was the subject of lengthy discussions, 
:\S had been the case in the case of Cardinal 
Mindszenty. In that perfectly clear text there was 
a tendency to read things which its authors had 
not intended, and which was motivated by a 
desire to interfere with the domestic affai rs of 
Member States. Thal was the effect of the very 
common f railty which led man to concem him
self with his neighbour's business. 

The records of the San Francisco Conference 
made it possible to ascertain the intentions of the 
legislators, a procedure which was customary in 
legal circles . .'The essential preoccupation at San 
Francisco had been to avoid the danger of unjus
tined intervention in the domestic affairs of a 
State. In that spirit, Mr. Evatt had proposed 1 the 
amendment suggesting the addition of the words 
"enforcement measure~ under". Many repre
sentatives from the smaller countries had declared 
themselves in favour of that amendment. The 
representative of Peru had pointed out that the 
Great Powers had the right of the veto. The 
representative of Bel~um had stated that the 
Security Council could not consider the substance 
of a dispute when a question within the domestic 
jurisdiction of the State was concemed. The 
United Kingdom representative had reco~nized 
the fact that the principle of domestic jurisdiction 
should not be i nfrin~cd unless a real threat of 
war existed. Mr. Dulles had stressed the impor
tance of Article 2, paragraph 7, a new and basic 
principle by virtue of which the Organization 
should never intervcne in what was essentially the 
domestic !ife of one of its Members1• Undoubt
edly economie and social problems might con
stitute eventual causes of war but in that fi eld the 
Organization would have to deal with Govern
ments on the basis of international relations and 
without itself interfering in the economie and 
social !ife of Member States. Thus according to 

'For discussion on domestic jurisdiction, see Docu
ments of tl1e United Nation.r Conference on [IJtemational 
Organicotion, San F rancisco, 1945, verbatim minutes of 
Technical Committees, Committee 1 of Commission I. 
lSth, I6th and 17th meetings. 

pourraient donner lieu certaines autres clauses de 
la Charte, en précisant que: 

"Aucune disoosition de la présente Charte 
n'autorise les Nations Unies à intervenir dans 
des affai res qui relèvent essentiellement de la 
compétence nationale d'un E tat." 

De plus, pour qu'aucun doute ne soit possiblè, 
la seule exception à ce principe est expressément 
indiquée : elle a trait aux mesures de coercition 
prévues au Chapitre VII. Il est donc clair que, 
si l'on avait voulu qu'il y eût une aut re exception 
en matière de droits de l'homme. celle-ci eût été 
expressément indiquée. De fait. le p;uagraphe 7 
de l'Article 2 exclut l'application des Articles 10 
et 14, href, de tout ce qui n'est pas mesures de 
coercition au titre du Chapitre VII. 

La délégation de l'Union Sud-Africaine s'auto
rise donc du paragraphe 7 de l'Article 2, sans 
lequel les Nations Unies n'auraient pu exister; 
hien des petites Puissances, en particulier, 
auraient hésité à se joindre aux Nations Unies 
sans l'e.xistence d'une telle dispo5ition. Mais, 
aujourd'hui, on va à l'encontre des intentions 
des fondateurs de l'Organisation . Le para~raphe 
7 de l'Article 2 donne lieu à de longues discus
sions. comme cela a été le cas dans l'affaire du 
cardinal Mindszenty. C'est que l'on veut. dans 
ce texte si clair, lire des intentions qui n'étaient 
nas celles de ses auteurs. Tel est l'effet du travers 
bien commun qui pousse l'homme à se mêler des 
affaires de son prochain. 

Les comptes rendus de la Conférence de San
Francisco permettent d'interpréter les intentions 
du législateur, comme il est d'usage de le faire 
en matière juridique. La considération essentielle 
était. à San-F rancisco, d'éviter le danger d' inter
ventions in iustifiées dans les affaires intérieures 
d'un E tat. Dans cet esprit, M. Evatt a proposé1 

l'amendement qui consistait à ajouter les mots 
"des mesures de coercition prévues au". De 
nombreux représentants des petits pavs se sont 
prononcés en faveur de cet amendement. Le 
représentant du Pérou indiquait que les grandes 
Puissances possédaient le droit de veto. Le 
représentant de la Belgique déclarait que le 
Conseil de sécurité ne pourrait examiner le fond 
d'un différend lorsqu'une question relevant de 
la compétence nationale d'un Etat serait en jeu. 
Le représentant du Royaume-Uni reconnaissait 
qu'il ne devrait pas être porté atteinte au principe 
de compétence nationale tant qu'il n'existait pas 
de véritable menace de guerre. M. Dulles souli
gnait l'importance du paragraphe 7 de l'Article 
2, principe nouveau et fondamental en vertu 
duquel l ' Or~anisation ne devait jamais intervenir 
dans ce qui constitue essentiellement la vie natio
nale d'un de ses Membres. Sans doute, des 
prohlèmes économiques et sociaux pourraient 
constituer des causes éventuelles de guerre, mais, 
dans ce domaine, l'Organisation aurait à traiter 
avec des Gouvernements, sur la base des relations 
internationales, et sans s'immiscer elle-même dans 

1 Pour les discussions relatives à la comp~tence na
tionale, voir les Doe~m1ents de lo Cot~{értnct dts Nat-ions 
Uniu s11r l'organisation internationale, San-Francisco, 
1945, comptes rendus sténographiques des Commissions 
techniques, lSème, 16~rne et 1 7~mo séances. (Ces comptes 
r1mdus " 'eristtfl.t q•l'" or~glai.s.) 

275 



Mr. Dulles, the Organization, like its Members, 
should observe cer tain princip! ! S: it should not 
intervene in the domestic affair; of any Member 
State1 • 

It had, of course, been said that the rules of 
international law applied in the matter under dis
cussion as the Union of South Africa was a signa
tory to the Charter and as matters of interna
tional concern transcended matters of national 
concern. That argument had ais•> been invoked in 
the case o f Cardinal Mindszenty. But, Mr. Dulles 
had askecl at San Francisco wh< th er the fa ct that 
any given problem was the su)ject of a treaty 
meant that it was no longer within the domestic 
jurisdiction of a State. In particular, could it 
be said that, the Charter being :1. treaty and con
sequt-ntly a source of internatio1al law, any sub
ject dealt with in the Charter no longer came 
within the domestic jurisdictio·1 of the various 
States? T o that question, howev< r, Mr. Dulles had 
offered a r eply which could wei: be the Union of 
South Africa's answer to India: if, from the fact 
that it was the object o f provisio 1s of the Charter, 
the entire social li fe of a Stat ~ became subject 
to international law and no lor1ger came within 
the domestic jurisdiction of that State, the limita
tion formulated in A rticle 2, p< ragraph 7 would 
be completely swept away. 

Finally, Mr. Evatt had declared at San F ran
cisco that every country had Î':s vital problems 
within its domestic policy, and that external inter
ference in those matters wou d tenninate the 
existence of the State. 

Uncioubtedly, there had been a desire to quibble 
on the part of those who sai·:l that the word 
"esc;entiallv" limited the scope of Article 2, para
gnph 7. But at San Francisco M r. Dulles had 
ohirC'ted to taking up again tl e wor<l "solelv" 
which had been u sed at Dumb.trton Oaks: Mr. 
Dulles had said that nothing ·:oday was solely 
within the domestic jurisdiction of a State. And 
Mr. Eva tt. referring to matter ; of employment 
which today were handled by the Economie and 
Social Cou neil. hact sta,téd thàt tl- e field of matters 
fallin!?' "essentiatly" within the c!omestic jurisciic
tion of a State was broader tha 1 that of matters 
fallinl!' "solely" within the domestic jurisdiction 
of a State. 

Thu~. to wish to li mit the scope of the guar
antees contained in Article 2, ·:>aragraph 7 was 
contrarv to the intentions of th< founders of the 
Organization, to the provisions and to the spirit 
of the Charter. 

On 29 February 1948, the Bullet in of the 
United States Department of St.1te had contained 
an a rticle bv Mr. Ernest A. Gross entitled "Im
pact of the ·united Nations upor! Domestic Juris
d iction". Mr. Gross seemed to <tpprove the com
ment by Goocirich and Hambro on Article 2, para
!!raph 7 who expressed the opinion that the 
organization should not make recommendations 
of anv kind on matter s which were within the 
domestic jurisdiction of a State. 

'For discussion on domestic juri::diction, see Docu
' ments of the Unittd N otions Ct>tl/ere tee on International 
Organizatiotl, San Francisco, 1945, V!rbatim minutes of 
Technical Committees, Committee 1 of Commission 1, 
l5th, 16th and 17th meetings. 

la vie économique et sociale des Etats Membres. 
Ainsi, t'Organisation, comme les Membres, a, 
selon M. Dulles, des obligations; elle ne doit pas 
intervenir dans les affaires intérieures d'un Etat 
Membre1 . 

. Certes, on a dit que les règles du droit inter
national s'appliquaient à la question actuelle, 
l'Union Sud-Africaine étant signataire de la 
Charte et l'intérêt international l'emportant sur 
l'intérêt national. On a invoqué un argument du 
même ordre dans l'affaire du cardinal Mindszenty. 
Mais M. Dulles avait demandé à San-Francisco 
si le fait qu'un problème quelconque faisait 
l'objet d'un traité signifiait qu'il perdait son 
caractère de question relevant de la compétence 
nationale d'un Etat. En particulier, pour rait-on 
dire que la Charte, étant un traité, et comme 
telle, source de droit international, tout sujet 
trajté dans la Charte cesse de relever de la com
pétence nationale des différents Etats ? M. Dulles 
apportait à cette question une réponse qui pour rait 
être celle de l'U nion Sud-Africaine à l' Inde: si 
toute la vie sociale d'un Etat, du fait qu'elle est 
l'objet de dispositions de la Charte, devient 
l'objet du droit international et cesse de relever 
de la compétence nationale de cet Etat, la 
restriction formulée au paragraphe 7 de l'Article 
2 est complètement annulée. 

E nfin, M. Evatt déclarait à San-Francisco 
que chaque pays avait ses problèmes vitaux, 
relevant de la politique nationale, et qu'une 
int·ervention extérieure dans ces domaines mettrait 
fin à l'existence de cet Etat. 

Sans doute a-t-on voulu chicaner en disant 
que le mot "essentiellement" limitait la portée 
du paragraphe 7 de l'Article 2. Mais, à San
Fra ncisco, M. Dulles s'était opposé à ce que l'on 
reprit le mot "exclusivement" qui avait été 
employé à Dumbarton Oaks : plus rien aujour
d'hui, disait M. Dulles, ne relève exclusivement 
de la compétence nationale d'un Etat. Et M. 
Evatt, se référant aux questions du travail qui 
sont aujourd'hui traitées par le Conseil écono
mique et social, déclarait que le domaine des 
questions relevant ."essentiellement" de la com
pétence intérieure d'un Etat était plus vaste que 
celui des problèmes r elevant "exclusivement" de 
la compétence nationale. 

Ainsi, tout effort pour restreindre la portée 
des garanties apportées par le paragraphe 7 de 
l'Article 2 est contraire aux intentions des 
fondateurs de J'Organisation, aux clauses et à 
l'esprit de la Charte. 

Le 29 février 1948, le bulletin du Département 
d'Etat des Etats-Unis contenait un article de M. 
Emest A. Gross intitulé Impact of the United 
N ations 1tpo" domestic jurisdictio,.. M. Gross 
semblait approuver le commentaire apporté par 
Goodrich et H ambro sur le parag raphe 7 de 
l'Article 2 et il indiquait que l'Organisation ne 
devait faire de recommandations d'aucune sorte 
sur les questions qui relèvent de la compétence 
nationale d 'un Etat . 

3 Pour les discussions relatives à la compétence na· 
tionale, voir les Documents de la Conférence des Natio11s 
Un ies .sur l'organisation internationale, San-Francisco, 
1945, comptes rendus sténographiques des Commissions 
tec hniques, lSème, 16ème et 17ème séances. (Cc.r CO'mptn 
ret~du.r n'exis tent qu'en anglais.) 

Z'/6 



In connexion with the question of jurisdiction, 
the Government of India had stated during the 
first part of the third session1 that the word 
"intervene" had a special sense, which it called 
"dictatorial interference", and neither a discussion 
in the General Assembly nor a resolution was that. 
The authors of Article 2, paragraph 7, however, 
had not had such fine distinctions in mind. What 
they had meant was that the United Nations 
should not intervene in any way in the domestic 
affairs of a sovereign State, either by a discussion 
of such affairs or, still Jess, by the adoption of 
resolutions concerning them. 

Given, moreover, that the most that the Gen
eral As5embly could do was to formulate a rec
ommendafio"n, weré Article 2, paragraph 7 to be 
given the interpretation which bad been s uggested 
by 'the representative of India, that text would 
Jose aH meaning. In that case, the General Assem
bly would be entitled to debate and make recom
mendations as it pleased on matters essentially 
within the domestic jurisdiction of Member 
States, contrary to the intention of the authors 
of the Charter. 

Mr. Louw recalled the amendment to Article 2, 
paragraph 7 submitted at San Francisco by the 
Australian delegation and by virtue of which, 
even within the framework of Chapter VII, the 
General Assembly could not make recommenda
tions before the international situation necessi
tated "enforcement measures". T hat was an even 
stronger reason for not giving the word "inter
vention" the forced interpretation which the 
representative of India had wished to apply. 

In document A/577, the Government of I ndia 
had accused the Union of South Africa of violat
ing the principles of the Charter and in partic
ular, of denying human rights and fundamental 
freedoms not only .to Indians, but to ali people 
other than whites. T hus that Government thought 
that the General Assembly had the right to inter-v 
vene in the domestic affairs of a State when it' 
was a question of an alleged violation of humaq'. 
rights, its contention being that Article 2, para
graph 7 did not apply in that case. 

Although he was dealing only with the legal 
aspect of the question, namely, the competence 
of the United Nations, Mr. Louw stated for 
the information of the Committee that his Gov
emment had never denied to its citizèns or to 
any section of its citizens, the rights and free
doms which in international la·w and usage had 
always been regarded as basic. In that field, the 
Union of South Africa surpassed many other na
ti<>ns. No one, whatever his race, had ever been 
denied complete freedom of conscience or religion, 
freedom of speech, the security implied by the 
protection of the authorities such as that accorded 
to the citizens at the time of the Durban riots, 
the inviolability of person or property, or the 
opportunity to obtain justice. Those who had 
accused the Union of South Africa might look 
to the conditions obtaining in their own countries. 

To return to the question of Article 2, para
graph 7, if the founders of the United Nations 
had wished to exclude human rights from the 
sphere of domestic jurisdiction they would have 
done so specifically, as they had clone in the case of 
enforcement measures under Chapter VII. It had 

1 See Official Records of the third sessiort of the Gert
era/ Assembly, Part 1, l46th plenary meeting, page 225. 

Le Gouvernement de l'Inde a déclaré, lors de 
la première partie de la troisième session', sur 
la question de compétence, que le mot " intervenir" 
avait un sens spécial, qu'il désignait une "immix
tion arbitraire" que ne sauraient constituer ni 
une discussion au sein de l'Assemblée générale, 
ni des résolutions. Mais les auteurs du paragraphe 
7 de l'Article 2 ne songeaient pas à de telles 
subtilités. Ils voulaient dire que les Nations Unies 
ne devaient intervenir en aucune manière dans 
les affaires intér ieures d'un Etat souverain, tout 
débat et, à plus forte raison, toute résolution sur 
ce sujet étant exclus. 

D'ailleurs, puisque le maximum de ce que peut 
faire l'Assemblée générale est de formuler une 
recommandation, si l'on devait donner au para
graphe 7 de l'Article 2 la signification qui a été 
proposée par le représentant de l'Inde, ce texte 
perdrait absolument toute portée. L'Assemblée 
générale pourrait délibérer et formuler des recom
mandations à sa guise sur les questions relevant 
essentiellement de la compétence nationale des 
Etats Membres, contrairement à l'intention des 
auteurs de la Charte. 

M. Louw rappelle l'amendement au paragraphe 
7 de l'Article 2 présenté à San-Francisco par la 
délégation de l'Aust ralie et en vertu duquel, même 
dans le cadre du Chapitre VII, l'Assemblée 
générale ne peut formuler de recommandations 
avant que la situation internationale ne soit telle 
que "des mesures de coercition" soient devenues 
nécessaires. A plus forte raison, on ne peut donner 
au mot "intervention" l'interprétation forcée qu'a 
voulu lui donner le représentant de l'Inde. 

Dans le document A/577, le Gouvernement de 
l'Inde accuse l'Union Sud-Africaine de violer 
les principes de la Charte, et plus particulière
ment de dénier les droits de l'homme et les libertés 
fondamentales non seulement aux Hindous, mais 
à tous autres que les blancs. Ainsi, ce Gouverne
ment considère que l'Assemblée générale a le 
droit d'intervenir dans les affaires intérieures d'un 
Etat lorsqu'il s'agit d'une prétendue violation des 
droits de l'homme, le paragraphe 7 de l'Article 2 
étant censé ne pas s'appliquer dans ce cas. 

Bien qu'il ne traite que de l'aspect juridique 
du problème, c'est-à-dire de la compétence des 
Nations Unies, M. Louw indique à titre d'infor
mation que son Gouvernement n'a jamais dénié 
à ses citoyens, ou à certains d'entre eux, les droits 
et libertés que le droit et la pratique internatio
naux ont toujours considérés comme fondamen
taux. Dans ce domaine, l'Union Sud-Africaine 
l'emporte sur bien d'autres nations. Nul, quelle 
que soit sa race, ne s'est jamais vu dénier la 
complète liberté de con3Cience et de culte, la 
liberté de parole, la sécurité qui implique une 
protection par les autorités comme celle qui a 
été accordée lors des émeutes de Durban, l'inviola
bilit é de la personne et des biens, ou la possibilité 
de se faire rendre justice. Ceux qui ont accusé 
l'Union Sud-Africaine devraient bien méditer sur 
les conditions qui règnent dans leur propre pays. 

Mais en ce qui concerne le paragraphe 7 de 
l'Article 2, si les fondateurs de l'Organisation 
avaient voulu exclure les droits de 11lomme du 
domaine de la compétence nationale d'un Etat, 
ils l'auraient fait explicitement, comme ils l'ont 
fait dans le cas des mesures de coercition prévues 

1 Voir les Documettts officiels dt lo troisième session 
de l'Assemblée gé~rale, premiè r~ partie, 146~mc séance 
plénière, page 225. 



not been, as might be sugg•!stcd, simply an 
omission. 

What, in fact, had been the intentions of the 
founders of the Charter - inter tions which there 
was a prevailing tendency to disregard? The 
founders of the Charter had ha( a full discussion 
of human rights in relation to Article 2, para
graph 7. Moreover, severa! delegations had 
expressed concem lest the proYisions of Article 
56 might be interpreted as giving the United 
Nations the right to intervene in the domestic 
affairs of Member States. 

The South African represcnta :ive then read out 
Article 56 of the Charter, and Article 55 (a) , 
(b) and (c). He emphasized th't sub-paragraphs 
(a) and (b) were equal in importance with sub
paragraph (c). 

Jt was particularly Articles 55 and 56 that were 
cited by those who would have the United Nations 
intervene in the domestic affairs of the Union of 
South Africa. According to Art:clc 2, paragraph 
7, however, "nothing contained in the present 
Charter" was to be used as a r;retext for inter
vening in the domestic affairs of Member States. 
Those who wished to bypass Article 2, para
graph 7 declared, however, that an international 
agreement or treaty constituted an exception to 
the rule of domestic jurisdiction. According to 
that view, not only was the Charter such an inter
national agreement, but, under f .rticle 56, signa
tories to the Charter had contraded certain obli
gations mentioned in Article 55, in particular the 
"pledge" to observe fundamental human rights 
and freedoms. However, he referred the Commit
tee to the recent observations of Mr. Dulles on 
the meaning of the words "international 
agreement." 

The South African delegation could not agree 
with such an interpretation of J~rticle 56 for a 
number of reasons. Firstly, the J•hrase "Nothing 
contained in the present Charter" was conclusive; 
second! y, the Charter did not in my way speci fy 
which hu man rights and fun da( 1ental freedoms 
were to be observed; the righb and freedoms 
were mentioned seven or eigh : times in the 
Charter, but were nowhere defin·!d and nowhere 
was any obligation indicated in tl.at respect. And 
thi rdly, it had not been the i11tention of the 
founders of the Charter that Ar1 ides 56 and 55 
should provide an exception to the operation of 
Article 2, paragràph 7, which ! afeguarded the 
principlc of non-intervention itt the domestic 
affairs of Member States. The lat1er point was of 
the greatest importance, not only :o the Union of 
South Africa, but also to the United Nations. 
That Organization was moving nvay from the 
intentions of the founders of tite Charter and 
tgwards dangerous waters. The lounders of the 
United Nations had realized the •langer inherent 
in interference in the domestic afhirs of Member 
States. Unfortunately, there were now those who, 
in their zeal for human rights a11d fundamental 
freedoms, were blind to the dang(·r of shipwreck 
ahead. 

During the discussions at the San Francisco 
Conference, in Committee I II of Commission II 
severa! representatives had cxpressed the fear that 
Article 56 of the Charter, as then worded, might 
be interpreted as constituting a11 exception to 
Article 2, paragraph 7, and that i· might lead to 

au Chapitre VII. Il ne s'est pas agi, comme on 
le dira peut-être, d'un simple oubli. 

Quelles étaient, en effet, ces intentions des 
auteurs de la Charte que l'on voudrait aujour
d'hui trahir? La question des droits de l'homme 
en relation avec le paragraphe 7 de l'Article 2 
a été l'objet d'un débat approfondi. Bien plus, 
certaines délégations ont exprimé la crainte que 
les dauses de l'Article 56 ne puissent être inter
prétées comme donnant aux Nations Unies le 
droit d'intervenir dans les affaires intérieures des 
Etats Membres. 

M. Louw donne lecture de l'Article 56 et des 
alinéas a) , b) et c) de l'Ar ticle 55. Il souligne 
que les alinéas a) et b) sont d'une importance 
égale à celle de l'alinéa c). 

C'est sur les Articles 55 et 56 que se fondent 
essentiellement ceux qui demandent aux Nations 
Unies d'intervenir dans les affaires intérieures 
de l'Union Sud-Africaine. Or, selon le paragraphe 
7 de l'Article 2, "aucune disposition" de la 
Charte ne doit servir de prétexte à une interven
tion dans les affaires intér ieures des E tats 
Membres. Toutefois, ceux qui veulent tourner 
l'Article 2, paragraphe 7, déclarent que tout 
accord international ou t raité constitue une excep
tion à la règle de la compétence nationale. Non 
seulement la Charte serait un accord international, 
mais, en vertu de l'Article 56, les signataires de 
la Charte contracteraient certaines obligations 
mentionnées à l'Article 55, et relatives notamment 
au respect des droits de l'homme et des libertés 
fondamentales. Mais M. Louw se réfère à ce qu'a 
dit M. Dulles sur le sens de l'expression "accord 
international". 

La délégation de l'Union Sud-Africaine ne 
peut se rallier à l'interprétation que l'on veut 
donner à l'Article 56. En effet, premièrement, 
la phrase "aucune disposition de la présente 
Charte" est décisive. Deuxièmement, la Charte 
ne précise en aucune manière quels sont ces droits 
de l'homme et ces libertés fondamentales qu'il 
convient d'observer: ces droits et libertés sont 
mentionnés à sept ou huit reprises dans la Charte, 
mais ils ne sont pas définis, et aucune obligation 
n'est indiquée à cet égard. T roisièmement, dans 
l'intention des auteurs de la Charte, l'Article 56 
ct 1' Article 55 ne devaient pas constituer m~e 
exception à l'application du paragraphe 7 de 
l'Article 2, qui garantit le principe de non-inter
vention dans les affaires intér ieures des Etats 
Membres. Ce dernier point est de la plus grande 
importance, non seulement pour l'Union Sud
Africaine, mais également pour les Nations Unies. 
En effet, les Nations Unies s'éloignent de ce 
qu'avaient voulu les auteurs de la Charte, et 
l'Organisation s'engage dans une mauvaise passe. 
Les fondateurs de l'Organisation des Nations 
Unies avaient compris le danger que représentait 
l'intervention dans les affaires intérieures des 
Etats Membres. Mais aujourd'hui, certains, dans 
leur zèle pour les droits de l'homme et les libertés 
fondamentales, ne voient pas que l'Organisat ion 
risque de faire naufrage. 

Le représentant de l'Union Sud-Africaine 
rappelle que, lors de la Conférence de San-Fran
cisco, au sein du Comité III de la Deuxième 
Commission, certains représentants e-xprimèrent 
la crainte que l'Article 56 de la Charte, tel qu'il 
était alors rédigé, pût être interprété comme 

278 



intervention in the domestic affairs of Member 
States. The representative of Australia had 
pointed out that Article 56, as adopted, bound 
Member States to fulfilling the objectives indi
cated in Article 55 only in so far as such action 
involved no infringement of their domestic juris
diction, which was to be protected under the pro
posed Charter by a special clause in Article 2. 
The United States representative, on the other 
hand, bad stated that he did not think that the 
pledge in Article 56, as interpreted by the repre
sentative of Australia, was within the scope of the 
Charter. He had warned that if the representa
tives attempted to convert this Article 56 into a 
convention by which the Member States agreed to 
take individual action on these problems, they 
would destroy the best hope of securing the adher
ence of ali the nations to the Charter. Mr. Louw 
also quoted statements made at the same time by 
representatives of Bclgium, the United Kingdom, 
New Zealand and the USSR, ali showing that 
those representatives had made explicit reserva
tions concerning the scope of Article 56 with 
regard to the domestic jurisdiction of Member 
States. T hose reservations had been included in a 
special statement in the report of Commission II 
to the plenary session of the Conference. More
over, .the Rapporteur had formalty stated that 
Commission II had agreed to include in the rec
ords a statement to the effect that "nothing con
tained in Chapter l X of the Charter can be con
strued as giving authority to the Organization to 
intervene in the domestic affairs of Member 
States". T hat statement had been included in the 
report, and it had been accepted by the Assembly 
in plenary session. Those faots proved the inten
tions of the founders of the Charter in regard not 
only to Articles 55 and 56, but also in regard to 
Article 2, paragraph 7 of the Charter. 

Mr. Louw considered that .the Committee now 
had to decide whether to recommend to the Gen
eral Assembly that it should act in accordance 
with the principles of the Charter as interpreted 
by those who had drafted it, or to take a decision 
which would lead the General Assembly away 
from those principles. If the Committee took the 
second course, a complete revision of the Charter 
would eventually become necessary. 

As far as the delegation of the Union of South 
Africa was concerned, it would abide by the above
mentioned special statement in the records of 
Commission II at the San Francisco Conference 
and confirmed by the plenary session of that Con
ference. He considered that, in accordance with 
the provisions of the Charter, the General Assem
bly of the United Nations was not competent to 
consider the complaint of the Indian Government. 

Mr. Louw was surprised by the suggestion that 
an intervention was to be justified by Article 55 
sub-paragraph ( c) ; it would be interesting to 
know the reactions of the States proposing such 
an intervention to the suggestion that they should 

constituant une exception au paragraphe 7 de 
l'Article 2 et qu'il pût ainsi mener à une inter
vention dans les affaires intérieures des Etats 
Membres. Le représentant de l'Australie indiqua 
alors que les disposi tions de l'Article 56, tel qu'il 
fut adopté, n'engageraient les Etats Membres, 
en vue d'atteindre les buts énoncés dans l'Article 
55, que dans la mesure où cela n'empiéterait 
pas sur leur juridiction intérieure, car celle-ci 
serait protégée, aux termes de la 01arte, par 
une disposition spéciale de l'Article 2. D'autre 
part, le représentant des Etats-Unis a déclaré 
qu'il ne pensait pas que l'interprétation donnée 
par le représentant de l'Australie à l'engagement 
que contient l'Article 56 reste dans le cadre de 
la Charte. Il a averti les représentants que s'ils 
tentaient de faire de l'Article 56 une sorte de 
traité en vertu duquel les Etats Membres accep
teraient d'entreprendre une action individuelle 
dans ces domaines, ils détruiraient le meilleur 
espoir que l'on aie de voir la Charte strictement 
respectée par toutes les nations. M. Louw cite 
également des déclarations faites à la même 
époque par les représentants de la Belgique, du 
Royaume-Uni, de la Nouvelle-Zélande et de 
l'URSS, qui montrent toutes que les représen
tants ont exprimé des réserves expresses quant 
à la portée de l'Article 56 en ce qui concerne 
la compétence nationale des Etats Membres. Ces 
réserves ont fait l'objet d'une déclaration spéciale 
contenue dans le rapport de la Deuxième 
Commission à l'Assemblée plénière de la Confé
rence. Le Rapporteur avait déclaré en outre que 
la Dewdème Commission avait décidé de porter 
aux procès-verbaux une déclaration spécifiant 
que "rien dans le Chapitre IX de la Charte ne 
pouvait être interprété comme permettant à 
l'Organisation d'intervenir dans les affaires inté
rieures des Etats Membres". Cette déclaration 
était contenue dans le rapport, et celui-ci a été 
accepté par l'Assemblée réunie en séance plénière. 
Cela prouve, dit M. Louw, les intentions des 
auteurs de la Charte eux-mêmes, non seulement 
en ce qui concerne les Articles 55 et 56, mais 
aussi en ce qui concerne le paragraphe 7 de 
l'Article 2 de la Charte. 

Le représentant de l'Union Sud-Africaine 
estime que l'alternative devant laquelle la Com
mission se trouve maintenant est de décider si 
elle doit recommander à l'Assemblée générale de 
suivre un cours d'action conforme aux termes 
de la Charte, tels qu'ils étaient dans l'esprit de 
ceux qui l'ont rédigée, ou de prendre une décision 
qui conduirait l'Assemblée à s'écarter des prin
cipes de la Charte. Si la Commission décide de 
s'inspirer de la deuxième formule, il serait en 
réalité nécessaire de procéder à une nouvelle 
rédaction de la Charte. 

La délégation de l'Union Sud-Africaine s'en 
tient, quant à elle, à la déclaration spéciale inscrite 
aux procès-verbaux de la Deuxième Commission 
de la Conférence de San-Francisco et confirmée 
par l'Assemblée plénière de cette Conférence, et 
considère que, aux termes de la Charte, 
l'Assemblée générale des Nations Unies n'est 
pas compétente pour examiner la plainte du 
Gouvernement de l'Inde. 

M. Louw est intrigué de voir que l'on veuille 
provoquer une intervention fondée sur le para
graphe c) de l'Article 55, car quelle serait la 
réaction des Etats demandant une telle interven
tion s' ils devaient se soumettre à l'intervention 

279 



submit to the intervention of the United Nations 
in their dornes tic aff airs in reg 1rd to su ch matters 
as standards of living, fulJ Employment, public 
health and other matters menti)ned in paragraphs 
(a) and ( b) of the same Article. 

T he decision of the Commit:ee on the question 
of competence would be of primary importance 
to ali Member States of the Jnited Nations. A 
tendency could be seen .to mcve away from the 
principles of the Charter, as they bad been ex
pressed and intended by the founders of the 
United Nations. The principle of national sover
eignty was being attacked, ;:nd above ali the 
smalJer nations would be the f rst to suffer if the 
safeguards provided by Article 2, paragraph 7 
were disregarded. However, they would not be 
the only ones to suffer from a wrong decision. 
Such a decision might threaten the very existence 
of the United Nations. 

In view of those facts, the delegation of the 
Union of South Africa subrr.itted to the Com
mittee a motion (A/C.l/460) calling upon the 
General Assembly to decide 1hat item 2 on its 
agenda (A/ 577) was a matter which was essen
tially within the domestic j11risdietion of the 
Union of South Africa, and that it did not fa11 
within the competence of the .'\ssembly. 

In conclusion, Mr. Louw p•>Înted out that his 
statement had dealt only with tl.e question of com
petence. The South African j eJegation had no 
intention of participating in th•! discussion on the 
substance of the complaint of the Indian Govern
ment, because su ch participa1 ion would be an 
admission that the United Nations had the right 
to interfere in the domestic afi:airs of a Member 
State. Since his presence at thE table of the Com
mittee would constitute technkal participation in 
the debate, the South African representative said 
that he would take the seat behind the table 
and folJow the discussion as an observer. H e 
proposed later to resume his seat in order to 
answer any arguments which might be raised con
cerning the motion of compett nee which he had 
submitted, and to take part ir . the vote on that 
motion. 

Sir Carl B ERENDSEN (New :~ealand) regretted 
the dispute that had arisen be ween two peoples 
with which New Zealand maintained the most 
friendly relations. 

An interpretation of Article 2, paragraph 7 of 
the Charter would certainly te of fundamental 
importance, not only for the e<•nsideration of ilie 
matter under discussion, but aho for ilie work of 
the United Nations as a wholc:. It was ~n fortu
nately truc iliat international documents had a 
tendency to be distinguished by their ambiguity, 
and ~e clause in question was a remarkable 
example. The main reason for these ambiguities 
undoubtedly lay in ilie desire t<· come to terms on 
a formula, even ambiguous, S) as to ensure at 
least sorne sort of formai agree:nent. If Article 2, 
paragraph 7 were closely scruf nized, was it pos
sible to say wiili certainty what the word "inter
vene" meant? \iV ould the adopfon of a resolution 
by the General Assembly cons·itute an interven
tion in ilie terms of that paragraph, or were they 
only applicable in the case of physical interven
tion, perhaps even of armed intervention ? And 
what did the expression " . .. matters which are 

des Nations Unies dans leurs affaires intérieures 
à l'égard de questions concernant le relèvement 
des niveaux de vie, le plein emploi, les problèmes 
de la santé publique et autres questions men
tionnées aux paragraphes a) et b) du même 
Article ? 

La décision que prendra la Commission en ce 
qui concerne la question de compétence sera 
d'une importance primordiale pour tous les Etats 
Membres des Nations Unies. Il existe aujourd'hui 
une tendance manifeste à s'éloigner des principes 
de la Charte, tels qu'ils furent exprimés, et tels 
qu'ils étaient dans l'intention des fondateurs de 
l'Organisation. Le principe de la souveraineté 
nationale, notamment, est attaqué, et ce seraient 
surtout les petites nations qui souffriraient si 
les garanties que donne le paragraphe 7 de 
l'Article 2 étaient mises hors de jeu. Mais elles 
ne seraient pas les seules à en souffrir si une 
décision erronée était prise. Une telle décision 
pourrait, en vérité, menacer l'existence même de 
J'Organisation des Nations Unies. 

Etant donné ces circonstances, la délégation de 
l'Union Sud-Africaine présente à la Commission 
une motion (A/C.l/460) appelant l'Assemblée 
générale à décider que le point 2 de son ordre 
du jour (A/577), est une question qui relève 
essentiellement de la juridiction nationale de 
l'Union Sud-Africaine, et n'est, par conséquent, 
pas de la compétence de l'Assemblée. 

En conclusion, M. Louw fait remarquer que, 
dans sa déclaration, il n'a traité que de la question 
de compétence. La délégation de l'Union Sud
Africaine n'a pas l'intention de prendre part à 
la discussion sur le fond de la plainte du 
Gouvernement de l'Inde, car une telle participa
tion au débat reviendrait à admettre que les 
Nations Unies ont le droit d'intervenir dans les 
affaires intérieures des Etats Membres. E n raison 
du fait que sa présence à la table de la Commission 
constituerait une participation technique au débat, 
M. Louw déclare qu'il prendra place derrière 
cette table pour suivre le débat en observateur. 
Il reprendrait sa place par la suite pour répondre 
aux arguments qui auront été présentés concer
nant la motion de compétence qu'il a soumise, et 
pour participer au vote sur cette motion. 

Sir Carl BERENDSEN (Nouvelle-Zélande) re
grette ce conflit entre deux peuples avec lesquels 
la Nouvelle-Zélande entretient les meilleures 
relations. 

Une interprétation du paragraphe 7 de l'Article 
2 de la Charte serait certainement d'une impor
tance fondamentale, non seulement pour l'examen 
de la question sous débat, mais également pour 
tous les travaux de l'Organisation des Nations 
Unies. C'est un fait malheureux que les documents 
internationaux ont une tendance à se distinguer 
par leur ambiguïté, et la clause en question en 
est un exemple remarquable. La raison principale 
de ces ambiguïtés est certainement le désir de 
se mettre d'accord sur une formule, même si 
elle est ambiguë, afin d'arriver, dans tous les 
cas, à un accord dans la forme. Si l'on examine 
de près le paragraphe 7 de l'Ar ticle 2, peut-on 
dire avec certitude ce qu'y signifie le mot "inter
venir"? L'adoption d'une résolution par l' Assem
blée générale serait-elle une intervention aux 
termes de ce paragraphe? Ou ne seraient-ils 
applicables que lorsqu'il s'agirait d'une interven
tion matérielle, peut-être même d'une intervention 

280 



essentially within the domestic jurisdiction of any 
State ... " really mean? Was it intended to 
dHferentiate between two categories of matters, 
those which were essentially within the domestic 
jurisdiction of a State, and those which were 
within the domestic jurisdiction of a State, but 
not essentially so? There were th us very grave 
doubts regarding the actual scope of that para
graph. lt was the O rganization's duty to clear up 
those doubts, and the only logical way to do so 
would seem to be to refer the matter to the only 
organ which could give a legal opinion on it, 
namely, the International Court of Justice. Un
fortunately, however, it was unlikely that the 
Assembly would be ready to adopt such a course. 
That fact must he accepted, however regretfully. 
In view, however, of the grave doubts that existed 
regarding- the scope of the paragraph in question, 
it seemed that the Committee's best course would 
be not to take any steps on the substance of the 
question, but to try to work out sorne proposai 
for mediation. 

The delegation of New Zealand was ready to 
support any proposai of that kind. On the other 
hand, it could not support any resolution contain
ing any suggestion of condemnation or even of 
toleration, or any decision dealing with the sub
stance of the question. 

Mr. PANYUSHKIN (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) recalted that the General Assembly 
had already dealt with the matter in 1946 and 
1947. The third session of the Assembly was 
obliged to discuss it once more, because the Gov
ernment of the Union of South Africa had 
refused to enter into negotiations with l ndia in 
order to settle the dispute in accordance with the 
General Assembly' s resolution 44 (1) of 8 De
cember 1946. On the contra ry, the policy of dis
crimination against persons of Indtan origin in 
the Union of South Africa had been strengthened. 
The lndian (',.overnment had therefore been 
obliged to ask the United Nations, in July 1948, 
to re-examine the question and to take steps in 
accordance with Articles 10 and 14 of the Charter. 
The l ndian Government's request stated that 
instead of adjusting its discriminatory laws and 
practices, the Government of the Union of South 
Africa had, on the contrary, announced its inten
tion to depr ive lndians and other persons of non
European descent of the very limited rights they 
had enjoyed up to that time. 

The Govemment of the Union of South Africa 
had on many occasions openly expressed its con
tempt for the decisions and wishes of the General 
Assembly, particularly with regard to resolution 
44 ( I) of 8 December 1946. F ield-Marshal Smuts, 
for example, in a public statement made in Decem
ber 1946, had condemned the United Nations, 
Raying that it was dominated by the coloured 
peoples. In November 1947, Mr. Lawrence, repre
sentative of the Union of South Africa, at the 
!\econd regular session of the General Assembly, 
had stated that his Government had no intention 
of respecting the Assembly resolution because it 
considered it to be illegaJl. During the second 
session of the Assembly, the First Committee had 

' See Official Records of the second session of the 
Gu:eral Assembly, First Committec. page 420. 

armée ? Et l'expression " .... affaires qui relèvent 
essentiellement de la compétence nationale d'un 
Etat . .. ",que veut-elle dire en vérité? Veut-on 
faire là une différence entre deux catégories 
d'affaires, celles qui relèvent essentiellement de 
la compétence nationale d'un Etat, et celles qui. 
tout en étant de la compétence nationale d'un 
Etat, n'en relèvent pas "essentiellement"? Il 
existe ici des doutes très sérieux en ce qui 
concerne le contenu même de ce paragraphe. 
Le devoir de l'Organisation est d'éclairci r ce 
doute, et la seule manière logique de le faire 
serait de renvoyer la question au seul organe 
qui peut donner un avis juridique, à savoir la 
Cour internationale de Justice. Mais, malheureu
sement, il est peu probable que l'Assemblée soit 
prête à adopter une telle procédure. Il faut, 
quoique avec regret, accepter ce fait. Mais, en 
raison des graves doutes qui existent en ce qui 
concerne la portée du paragraphe en question, 
il semble que le mieux serait pour la Commission, 
de ne pas prendre de position sur le fond de la 
question, mais de tâcher de parvenir à une 
proposition de médiation. 

La délégation de la Nouvelle-Zélande est prête 
à appuyer toute proposition de ce genre. Elle ne 
pourrai t au contraire participer à aucune décision 
indiquant une condamnation ou même une 
tolérance, donc à aucune décision t raitant du fond 
de la question. 

M. PANIOUCHJUNE (Union des Républiques 
socialistes soviétiques) rappelle que la queition 
a déjà été traitée par l'Assemblée générale, tant 
en 1946 qu'en 1947. La troisième session de 
l'Assemblée est obligée de s'en occuper de nou
veau, parce que le Gouvernement de l'Union 
Sud-Africaine a refusé d'entreprendre des pour
parlers avec l'Inde afin de régler la question, 
confonnément à la résolution 44(I) de l'Assem
blée générale en date du 8 décembre 1946. Au 
contraire, la politique discr iminatoire à l'égard 
de la population d'or igine hindoue dans l'Union 
Sud-Africaine a été renforcée. Le Gouvernement 
de l'Inde a dû, pour cette raison, s'adresser à 
l'Organisation des Nations Unies, en juillet 1948, 
pour qu'elle examine à nouveau la question et 
prenne des décisions conformes aux Articles 10 
et 14 de la Charte. La demande du Gouvernement 
de l'Inde indique que, au lieu de modifier ses 
lois et ses pratiques discriminatoires, le Gouver
nement de l'Union Sud-Africaine a, au contraire, 
déclaré son intention de priver les H indous et 
autres personnes d'origine non européenne des 
droits déjà très limités dont ils bénéficiaient 
jusqu 'à présent. 

Le Gouvernement de l'Union Sud-Africaine 
a, à maintes reprises, exprimé ouvertement son 
mépris des décisions et des désirs de l'Assemblée 
générale, en particulier en ce qui concerne la 
résolution 44 (I) du 8 décembre 1946. Le 
maréchal Smuts a, par exemple, dans une déclara
tion publique faite en décembre 1946, condamné 
l'Organisation des Nations Unies en déclarant 
qu'elle se trouvait sous la domination des gens 
de couleur. En novembre 1947, M. Lawrence, 
représentant de l'Union Sud-Africaine à la 
deuxiième session régulière de l'Assemblée géné
rale, déclara que son Gouvernement n'avait pas 
l'intention de respecter la rèsolut ion de 1' Assem
blée, car il la considérait comme illégale1• La 

'Voir les Documrttts officitls rh la dtuxibM session d~ 
l'Assemblée gl"érale, Première Commission, page 420. 

281 



adopted a proposaP connectee. with the resolu
tion 44 (1) of 8 December JÇ46. As a result of 
the support of the United ~:tates and United 
Kingdom delegations, the Unicn of South Africa 
had succeeded in preventing t1at proposai from 
obtaining the two-thirds majority necessary for 
its adoption by the Assembly, which, as a result, 
had not confirmed its recomm< ndations of 8 De
cember 1946. Mr. Panyushkin .then quoted an 
article from the Rand Daily Mail indicating the 
votes of certain Latin-American countries on that 
occasion, and added that during the second session 
of the Assembly, the countri•!S which had de
fended the Franco Government had al-so voted 
against the condemnation of 1he policy of dis
crimination of the Governmen1 of the Union of 
South Africa towards South l.frican citizens of 
lndian descent. 

After hearing the representative of the Union 
of South A frica give a long statement of his 
opinion, according to which the matter was not 
within the competence of the General Assembly, 
a large number of delegations, including that of 
the Soviet Union were still of the opinion that 
the matter before the Commission had neverthe
less become an international p:·oblem. That was 
obvious from the fact that the :ieneral Assembly 
had considered the matter at two sessions and 
was currently occupied with it once more. 
Furthermore, in sig-ning the Charter of the 
United Nations, the Union of 3outh Africa had 
assumed obligations to respect and observe human 
ri~hts and fundamental freedons, in accordance 
w1th Article 55 of the Charter. Finally, the Gov
ernment of the Union of Sout~ t Africa had un
dertaken, in agreements sign ~d at Capetown 
between it and the Governmen1 of India, not to 
proceed to such discrimination. 

The suggestions made by t~ e representatives 
of severa! countries to refer the question to the 
International Court of Justice were contrary to 
the legitimate aspirations of the Indian Govern
ment, and were intended to draw the General 
Assembly's attention away from the substance 
of the matter. 

Leading circles in the Union of South Africa, 
supported in the General Asserr bly by the coun
tries of the Angle-Saxon bloc, had intensified 
their persecution of the Indians. The Govern
ment of Ficld-Marshal Smuts 1ad urged in its 
time that the Indians should be deprived of the 
very small right of representation-three mem
bers in all-granted to them in 1946. When 
Prime Minister Malan came into power, a law 
to that effect bad been adopted md had received 
the approval of the Governor-General. That law 
had also restricted more closely than before the 
Indians' right to purchase land \/here they chose, 
thus establishing a rigid system of control which 
forced Indians to set.tle in the te 1itories reserved 
for them. 

In accordance with the princi)!e divide et im
pera, the ruling circles in the Union of South 
Afri ca were making every effort ·:o sew dissension 
between the various racial grot:ps. That policy, 
designed to convince the Natives that the Indians 
were responsible for their diffic 1lt position, had 
ended, inter alia, in the riots at Durban. Such 

'See Official Records of the seco"d session of the Gen
eral Assembly, First Committee, annoc 19a, page 623. 

Première Commission adopta au cours de la 
deuxième session de l'Assemblée une proposition1 

ayant trait à la résolution 44( I). Grâce à l'appui 
des délégations des Etats-Unis et du Royaume
Uni, l'Union Sud-Africaine parvint à empêcher 
que cette proposition obtînt la majorité des deux 
tiers nécessaire à son adoption par l'Assemblée 
qui, de ce fait, ne confirma pas ses recommanda
tions du 8 décembre 1946. M. Paniouchkine cite 
ici un article du Rand Daily Mail indiquant les 
votes de certains pays de J'Amérique latine à 
cette occasion, et ajoute que, à la deuxième 
session de l'Assemblée, les pays qui défendirent 
le Gouvernement de Franco se prononcèrent 
contre la condamnation de la politique de discri
mination du Gouvernement de l'Union Sud
Africaine à l'égard de ses ressortissants d'origine 
hindoue. 

Après avoir entendu le représentant de l'Union 
Sud-Africaine exposer longuement son opinion, 
selon laquelle cette question ne relèverait pas 
de la compétence de l'Assemblée générale, un 
grand nombre de délégations, notamment celle 
de l'Union soviétique, sont néanmoins d'avis 
qu'elle est devenue maintenant un problème 
international. Cela découle déjà du fait que 
l'Assemblée générale s'est occupée de la question 
au cours de deux sessions et qu'elle continue de 
s'en occuper actuellement. En outre, l'Union 
Sud-Africaine, du fait qu'elle a signé la Charte 
des Nations Unies, a assumé l'obligation de 

i respecter et d'observer les droits de l'homme et 
i les libertés humaines fondamentales, conformé

ment à l'Article 55 de la Charte. Enfin, le 
Gouvernement de l'Union Sud-Africaine s'est 
en.gagé, par les accords signés à l'époque entre le 
Gouvernement de l'Inde et lui-même, au Cap, à 
ne pas procéder à une telle discrimination. 

Plusieurs représentants ont suggéré de ren
voyer la question à la Cour internationale de 
Justice ; mais ce serait une procédure contraire aux 
aspirations légitimes du Gouvernement de l'Inde, 
et qui tendrait à détourner J'attention de 
l'Assemblée générale du fond de la question. 

Les cercles dirigeants de l'Union Sud-Africaine, 
appuyés au sein de l'Assemblée générale par les 
pays du bloc anglo-saxon, ont renforcé leurs 
persécutions contre les Hindous. Le gouverne
ment du maréchal Smuts insista à l'époque pour 
que les Hindous soient privés du droit de repré
sentation très réduit - ils étaient représentés 
par trois hommes en tout - qui leur fut octroyé 
en 1946. Après l'arrivée au pouvoir du Premier 
Ministre Malan, une telle loi a été adoptée et a 
reçu l'approbation du Gouverneur général. Cette 
loi a également restreint, encore plus qu'aupara
vant, les droits des Hindous d'acheter des terres 
dans les régions où ils le désirent, établissant 
ainsi un strict contrôle afin que les Hindous ne 
puissent s'établir que dans les territoires qui leur 
sont réservés. 

Les cercles dirigeants de l'Union Sud-Africaine 
s'efforcent d'aviver la haine entre les divers 
gr-oupes raciaux, suivant ainsi le principe: .Divide 
ttl imperes. Cette politique, tendant à convaincre 
les indigènes que les Hindous sont responsables 
de leur position difficile, a abouti, entre autres 
choses, aux émeutes qui se déroulèrent à Durban. 

1 Voir les Docummts officiels de la deuxième stssio" dt 
I'A.uemblée gé"éralt, Première Commission, annexe 19a, 
page 623. 

282 



methods recalled the pogroms once organized in 
Hitler Germany. 

The USSR was not directly concerned in the 
question of the Indians in the Union of South 
Africa. It had however supported the Indian 
delegation in its aspirations from the outset, and 
would continue to maintain that position. In so 
doin~, the delegation of the Soviet Union was 
insp1red by the principles of the policy of Lenin 
and Stalin regarding nationalities, as they were 
applied in the Soviet Union, where racial dis
crimination and oppression had been forever 
rooted out. 

The USSR Government, always a defender of 
the rights of oppressed and enslaved peoplcs, 
considered tha.t the United Nations should ener
getically condemn the policy of discrimination 
practised by the Government of the Union of 
South Africa and take effective steps with regard 
to that policy. 

T he meeting rose at 12.55 p.m. 

TWO HUNDRED AND SIXTY-SIXTII 
MEETING 

H eld at Lake St4-ccess, New York, 
on Tuesday, 10 May 1949, at 2.30 p.m. 

Chairman: M r. F. VAN LANGENHOVE (Belgium). 

151. Discussion on the question of the 
treatment of lndians in the Union 
of South Africa (continued) 

Mr. LANNUNG (Denmark) stated that his dele
gation had followed the devclopments since the 
last session of the General Assembly with great 
interest. He understood the d ifficulties which the 
Union of South Africa was facing in the special 
problem of having a multi-racial community. 
However , it was hard .to understand how the con
templated policy of segregation could help in the 
solution of those difficulties, particularly in view 
of the principles in that respect contained in the 
Charter. The Danish delegation therefore main
tained its previous point of view, namely that this 
matter could not be dismissed off-hand as falling 
outside the competence of the United Nations 
and that a solution of the problem was desirable. 
Such a solution might best be reached by d iscus
sions between the two parties, whether by round
table discussions or in any other appropriate 
manner , a nd he hoped that both parties would 
make an effort to get together with that aim in 
mind. Another possibility was recourse to con
ciliation or mediation, either agreed upon by the 
parties or under the auspices of the United 
Nations. Such conciliation or mediation could be 
undertaken under the good offices of the P resi
dent of the General Assembly or of the Secre
tary-General. The two parties might ask the Sec
retary-General to assume such function himself 
or to appoint sorne impartial public figure as a 
mediator. He hoped that the facilities of the 
United Nations, which had proved their worth in 
the Berl in question, for example, might also be 
used in connexion with that problem. 

If it proved impossible to follow the procedures 
he had suggested, other means of settlement must 
be tried. The dispute could not be allowed to 

Ces méthodes rappellent les pogromes qu' orga
nisait naguère l'Allemagne hitlérienne. 

L'URSS n'est pas partie directement intéressée 
à la question du traitement des Hindous dans 
l'Union Sud-Africa ine. Elle a cependant dès le 
début appuyé la délégation de l'Inde dans ses 
aspirations, et continuera de maintenir cette 
position. La délégation de l'Union soviétique 
s'inspire là des principes de la politique de Lénine 
et de Staline en ce qui concerne les nationalités, 
tels qu'ils sont appliqués dans l'Union soviétique, 
où la discrimination et l'oppression raciales ont 
été extirpées à jamais. 

Le Gouvernement de l'URSS, défendant 
comme toujours le droit des peuples opprimés 
et asservis, considère que l'Organisation des 
Nations U nies doit condamner énergiquement la 
politique discriminatoire pratiquée par le Gouver
nement de l'Union S ud-Africaine et prendre des 
mesures efficaces à l'égard de cette politique. 

La séance est levée à 12 h. 55. 

DEUX CENT SOIXANTE-SIXIEME 
SEANCE 

Tentte à Lake Success, New-York, 
le mardi 10 mai 1949, à 14 h. 30. 

Présid'ent: M. F. VAN LANGENHOVE ( Belgique). 

151. Discussion sur la question du 
traitement des Hindous établis 
dans l'Union Sud-Africa ine 
(suite ) 

M. L ANNUNG (Danemark) déclare que sa 
délégation a suivi avec grand intérêt l'évolution 
de la question depuis la dernière session de 
l'Assemblée générale. Il comprend les difficultés 
que provoque pour l'Union Sud-Africaine le fait 
particulier que de multiples races composent la 
communauté nationale. Cependant, il peut diffi
cilement comprendre comment la politique de 
ségrégation qu'on envisage pourrait contribuer à 
aplanir ces difficultés, surtout si l'on tient compte 
des principes de la Charte à cet égard. La délé
gation du Danemark maintient donc son point 
de vue antérieur, à savoir que l'on ne peut décré
ter à la légère que le problème n'est pas de la 
compétence de l'Organisation des Nations Unies; 
au contraire, il importe de le résoudre. La meil
leure façon d'y parvenir serait de recourir à des 
entretiens entre les parties, à une conférence de 
la table ronde ou à tout autre moyen approprié, 
et M. Lannung espère que les intéressés feront 
un effort pour se réunir à cette fin. Une autre 
possibilité serait de recourir à la conciliation ou 
à la médiation, soit par accord entre les parties, 
soit s·ous les auspices de l'Organisation des 
Nations Unies. La conciliation ou la médiation 
pourra it s'effectuer par les soins du Président 
de l'Assemblée générale ou du Secrétaire général. 
Les deux parties pourraient inviter le Secréta ire 
généra l à assumer lui-même une fonction de ce 
genre ou à désigner comme médiateur une haute 
person:nalité impartiale. M. Lannung espère que 
l'on pourrait profiter, en l'espèce, des facilités 
qu'offre l'Organisation des Nations Unies et dont 
la valeur a été démontrée, notamment en ce qui 
concerne l'affaire de Berlin. 

S 'il se révélait qu'il est impossible d'appliquer 
ces procédés, il faudrait r echercher d'autres so
lutions. On ne peut laisser le différend s'éterniser 

283 




